IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

AUG 13 1998

CLERK, SUPREME COURT
By
Ohief Deputy Clerk

LAZARO GONZALEZ,

CASE NO.

Petitioner,

VS.

THE STATE OF FLORIDA,

Respondent.

PETITIONER'S JURISDICTIONAL BRIEF

On Review from the District Court of Appeal, Third District, State of Florida DCA Case No. 96-24186

> Jazaro Gonzalez, Pro Se D.C.# 196774 Glades Correctional Institution 500 Orange Avenue Circle Belle Glade, FL. 33430-5221

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

- 1. On August 20, 1996, Gonzalez was charged by information in the Eleventh Judicial Circuit Court with one count of "trafficking cocaine" in violation of s.893.135(1)(b)1.c., Fla. Stat. (1995), and one count of "possession of cocaine" in violation of s.893.13(6)(a), Fla. Stat. (1995).
- 2. On August 28, 1996, Gonzalez entered into a "substantial assistance plea" to which it was agreed that Gonzalez would plea guilty to traficking in cocaine (400 grams or more, but less than 150 kilograms), in exchange for a guideline sentence (App. 1-2). It was further agreed between the parties that if Gonzalez failed to appear for sentencing on the date set by the court, he would be sentenced to thirty years in the State Prison with a minimum mandatory prison sentence of fifteen years.
- 3. Gonzalez failed to provide "substantial assistance" or to "appear for sentencing on the date set by the court" (App. 2).
- 4. Gonzalez was sentenced on October 30, 1996, to thirty years in prison with a fifteen year minimum mandatory provision, along with a \$250.000.00 fine, plus \$12,500.00 surcharge.
 - 5. Gonzalez did not prosecute a direct appeal.
- 6. On September 16, 1998, Gonzalez filed a postconviction motion pursuant to Rule 3.850, Fla.R.Crim.P..

In said motion, Gonzalez challenged the voluntariness of his plea, based upon the fact that he relied upon his attorney and the trial court's "affirmative misrepresentations" that he was facing a potential maximum sentence of life imprisonment, thereby, inducing him to assent to the plea agreement.

- 7. The trial court denied Gonzalez' motion and he sought appellate review in the District Court of Appeal, Third District.
- 8. After submission of brief's by Gonzalez and the State, the Third District affirmed the trial court's order in a written per curiam opinion. The Hon. Judge Fletcher entered a written dissent. The basis for the majority affirmance was stated that: "[Gonzalez] is precluded from collaterally attacking his plea". The majority opinion further held that: "[a]n evidentiary hearing would be a waste of judicial resources; in light of [Gonzalez'] failure to abide by his portion of the bargain, his claim of prejudice is without merit" (App.1-2).
- 9. Notice to invoke the discretionary jurisdiction of this court was timely filed pursuant to the "mailbox rule" on July 30, 1998.

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

In this case, the district court of appeal held that a plea agreement is not subject to collateral attack. The district court's expression of law contained in the majority opinion is in direct conflict with the holding in <u>Holt v</u> State, 653 So.2d 1120 (Fla. 2d DCA 1995), and the established principles just recently expounded upon by this Court in State v Leroux, 689 So.2d 235 (Fla. 1996), where the court recognized that postcoviction relief in the form of leave to withdraw a plea can be granted on the basis of counsel's misrepresentation about the length of a sentence.

This Court has jurisdiction and should exercise it in order to create stability in law amongst the district court of appeals of Florida.

JURISDICTIONAL STATEMENT

The Florida Supreme Court has discretionary jurisdiction to review a decision of a district court of appeal that expressly and directly conflicts with a decision of the supreme court or another district court of appeal on the same point of law. Art. V § 3(b)(3) Fla. Const. (1980); Fla.R.App.P. 9.030(a)(2)(A)(iv).

ARGUMENT

THE DECISION OF THE DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL IN THIS CASE EXPRESSLY AND DIRECTLY CONFLICTS WITH THE DECISION OF THE SECOND DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL IN HOLT V STATE, 653 So.2d 1120 (Fla. 2d DCA 1995), AND THE ESTABLISHED PRINCIPLES OF LAW IN THIS COURT'S DECISION IN STATE V LEROUX, 689 So.2d 235 (Fla. 1996).

The District Court of Appeal, Third District, held that Gonzalez' plea agreement is not subject to collateral attack because Gonzalez did not abide by the terms of the agreement (App. 1). In support of this proposition, the majority opinion cites to cases expressing the broad principle that contract law applies to plea agreements (App. 2).

In contrast, the District Court of Appeal, Second District, in <u>Holt v State</u>, 653 So.2d 1120 (Fla. 1995), was faced with an identical claim as Gonzalez', and held that:

... "The misinformation allegedly provided by trial counsel could have persuaded Holt to enter into the plea agreement."

Id. Holt, 653 So.2d at 1121.

Likewise, this Court in State v Leroux, 689 So.2d 235 (Fla. 1996), expounded upon the established principles, or point of law, that a plea agreement may be subject to collateral attack, and expressly held that:

... "Misrepresentation by counsel as to the length of a sentence ... can be the basis for postconviction relief in the form of leave to withdraw a guilty plea."

Id. Leroux, 689 So.2d at 236.

The Court went on to use for example, the Second District's holding in Trenary v State, 453 So.2d 1132 (Fla. 2d DCA 1984), where they relied upon Supreme Court precedence stating:

... "The law is well settled that if a defendant enters a plea in reasonable reliance on his attorney's advice, which in turn was based on the attorney's honest mistake or misunderstanding, the defendant should be allowed to withdraw his plea. Costello v State, 260 So.2d 198 Fla. 1972); Brown v State, 245 So.2d 41 (Fla. 1971). ... "

Id. Leroux, 689 So.2d at 237.

These cases stand for the well known point of law that plea agreements assented to based upon material "misrepresentations" by defense counsel, if proven, are subject to collateral attack in the form of leave to withdraw the plea agreement. The potential maximum sentence a defendant is facing, is always, a material factor to be considered prior to waiving fundamental constitutional rights and entering a plea agreement.

The Third District's ruling that the plea agreement in this case is not subject to collateral attack is in express and direct conflict with the Second District and this Court's rulings on the same expression of law.

Moreover, these type of error's always occur prior to the formal entry of a plea, thus, any ensuing agreement is not knowingly and voluntarily entered.

Finally, Gonzalez submits that the people of the State of Florida rely upon stability in the law, therefore, this

Court should exercise its jurisdiction by accepting this case for review, in order to resolve this conflict on the same point of law.

CONCLUSION

WHEREFORE, based upon the foregoing facts, authorities, and argument, Gonzalez urges this Honorable Court to grant review in this case.