### IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

SEP 21 1998

CASE NO. 93,648

LAZARO GONZALEZ,

Petitioner,

-vs-

THE STATE OF FLORIDA,

Respondent.

ON PETITION FOR DISCRETIONARY REVIEW FROM THE DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL OF FLORIDA, THIRD DISTRICT

BRIEF OF RESPONDENT ON JURISDICTION

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH Attorney General Tallahassee, Florida

ERIN E. DARDIS
Assistant Attorney General
Florida Bar Number 0075310
Office of the Attorney General
Department of Legal Affairs
444 Brickell Ave., Suite 950
Miami, Florida 33131
(305) 377-5441
fax 377-5655

#

#### INTRODUCTION

The Petitioner, LAZARO GONZALEZ, was the Defendant in the trial court and the Appellant in the Third District Court of Appeal. The State of Florida was the prosecution in the trial court and the Appellee in the Third District Court of Appeal. In this brief, the parties will be referred to as they stood in the trial court. The symbol "A." will refer to the documents attached to the Petitioner's appendix.

# CERTIFICATE OF FONT AND TYPE SIZE

The undersigned has utilized 12 point courier in preparing this brief.

#### STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

The Defendant appealed the summary denial of his motion for postconviction relief to the Third District Court of Appeal. (A. 1). The Third District affirmed the lower court because "Defendant is precluded from collaterally attacking his plea bargain because he himself failed to abide by the terms to which he agreed." (A. 1).

### SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

The Third District's opinion is not in conflict with the cases relied upon by the Defendant. The Third District's opinion holds that the Defendant was estopped from collaterally attacking his plea bargain where he failed to abide by the terms to which he agreed. By contrast, none of the cases relied upon by the Defendant address this specific issue. Thus, no conflict jurisdiction exists.

#### ARGUMENT

THE DECISION OF THE THIRD DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL IS NOT IN DIRECT OR EXPRESS CONFLICT WITH HOLT V. STATE, 653 SO. 2D 1120 (FLA. 2D DCA 1995; STATE V. LEROUX, 689 SO. 2D 235 (FLA. 1996); OR TRENARY V. STATE, 453 SO. 2D 1132 (FLA. 2D DCA 1984).

In his brief, the Petitioner claims that the Third District's opinion is in conflict with an established decision of this Court as well as decisions of other district courts of appeal on the issue of whether a defendant's failure to abide by the terms of a plea agreement to which he specifically agreed estops him from collaterally attacking the plea agreement. However, none of the cases identified by the Petitioner are in conflict with the Third District's opinion, and this Court should therefore decline to accept discretionary jurisdiction in this matter. See Reaves v. State, 485 So. 2d 829 (Fla. 1986) ("conflict must be express and direct, i.e., it must appear within the four corners of the majority decision...").

In the instant case, the Third District specifically held that the Defendant was estopped from collaterally attacking his plea bargain because he failed to abide by the terms to which he agreed. (citing Novaton v. State, 610 So. 2d 726 (Fla. 3d DCA 1992); State v. Frazier, 697 So. 2d 944 (Fla. 3d DCA 1997); Madrigal v. State,

545 So. 2d 392, 935 n. 2 (Fla. 3d DCA 1989)). None of the cases relied upon by the Defendant for conflict, however, address this issue.

For example, in Holt v. State, the Second District held that allegations that counsel misinformed the defendant about the sentence that would be imposed was entitled to a hearing on his motion for postconviction relief. 653 So. 2d at 1120-21. In State v. Leroux, this Court held that the defendant's negative response to the trial court's question of whether anything had been promised to him to induce his guilty plea did not conclusively refute his postconviction relief claim that his negotiated plea was the product of trial counsel's alleged misrepresentations and, therefore, an evidentiary hearing was required. 689 So. 2d at 237-38. Finally, in Trenary v. State, the Second District held that where a defendant enters a plea in reasonable reliance on his attorney's advice, which in turn was based on the attorney's honest mistake or misunderstanding, the defendant should be allowed to withdraw his plea. 453 So. 2d at 1133-34.

Since none of the cases relied upon by the Defendant address the specific issue addressed by the Third District in this case, it is clear that no conflict exists between those cases and the Third District's opinion below. Again, this Court should decline to

accept discretionary jurisdiction.

#### CONCLUSION

WHEREFORE, based upon the authorities and arguments cited herein, this Court should decline to exercise its discretionary jurisdiction.